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                                     ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

                                    SUPPORTING COMMUNITIES
	To:
	David Fowler, Planning Officer, Development Management, 5 Pancras Square N1C

	From:
	Nick Priddle BSc (Hons) MSc AIEMA, MIOA (Noise/Contaminated Land Officer)

	Date:
	29/08/18

	Address:
	61-65 Charlotte Street London W1T 4PF 

	Proposal:
	Details of noise levels (plant) required by condition 16 of planning permission ref 2015/1746/P (dated 08/01/2016), for erection of mansard roof extension, rear extension at lower ground & ground floor levels, to create 6x residential flats and office accommodation.

	Reference:
	2018/3488/P

	Key Points:
	Further information is required.  


ENVIRONEMTAL HEALTH OBERVATIONS
PART 1
The following documents have been reviewed in preparation of the comments below:
· Covering Letter, dated 23/7/18
· Noise Impact Assessment (Ref 9677-NIA-01 RevE) dated 18/7/18
Condition 16 states the following:
“Prior to use of the installation, details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council, of the external noise level emitted from plant equipment and mitigation measures as stated in report ref: 9677- NIA - 01 RevA, dated 29th June 2015. The measures shall ensure that the external noise level emitted from plant, machinery/equipment will be lower than the lowest existing background noise level by at least 10dBA, as assessed according to BS4142:1997 at the nearest and/or most affected noise sensitive premises, with all machinery operating together at maximum capacity.  Approved details shall be implemented prior to occupation of the development and thereafter be permanently retained.

Reason: To ensure that the amenity of occupiers of the development site/ surrounding premises is not adversely affected by noise from plant/mechanical installations

NIA – Summary Review 
A mixed used development includes the following No. 8 condenser units:

· 5 No. Daikin ERLQ006CAV3 Condenser Units,
· 3 No. Daikin ERLQ011CAV3 Condenser Units

It is proposed to enclose the condensers on a flat roof at first floor level, which will be overlooked by residential windows associated with the development. The closest noise sensitive residential receptor (NSRR) will be separated from the centre of the enclosed plant by a distance of some 7m.  
Due to air flow requirements it would not be possible to fully enclose the condenser units, instead the enclosure will be open topped with louvered screens to the front.      
A background noise survey was undertaken more than 3.5 years ago in general accordance with BS7445:1991.  The survey was undertaken between 14:45hrs on the 12th December and 18:45hrs on 14 December 2014.  During the survey a minimum background noise level of 42 dB LA90 (over 24hours) was identified.     
The NIA adopted a design criterion of 32dB LAeq 24hours for the condensers, which complies with the Council’s plant noise limit of 10 dBA below background noise (Policy A4/Appendix 3 of the Local Plan 2017).   
The NIA predicted a noise level of 36dB LAeq propagating from the enclosure (condensers operating) and impacting the closest NSRR.  It can be seen this level exceeds the design criterion by +4dBA = (36-32).  Plans have not been provided to illustrate the layout of the acoustic screen.  Furthermore the description in Section 6.2 is confusing e.g. “A louvered screen has been designed with the bottom and side closest to the receiver fully enclosed, with an open top.” 

Section 6.2 also mentions the acoustic screen extends 0.5 m above the highest point of the air conditioning units and in Table 2 (Appendix B) acoustic performance data has been used to predict sound reduction due to screening.  Manufactures data hasn’t been provided for either the screen or the louvers to support the calculations made.  
An acoustic screen 0.5m above the highest point of the condensers has been recommended, but in the absence of a barrier calculation (illustrating the path length difference between source and receiver) it isn’t possible to establish if the barrier is high enough given the close proximity of the closest NSRR (approx. 7m to centre of enclosure).  

Conclusion

· Plans showing the acoustic screen and louvers in relation to the neighbouring residents have not been provided, but are required.  
· Manufactures details confirming the acoustic performance of the acoustic screen and louvers are required.
· Appendix B of the NIA presents two acoustic louver calculation tables (Table 1 - sound reduction & Table 2 - screening).  It’s questionable why two separate calculations have been performed and not one, as it appears the latter could demonstrate compliance with the design criterion i.e. 32dB.  
· Both tables in Appendix B contain curious information i.e. cumulative levels of 32dBA and 33dBA are stated. By comparison the summation of all 8 octave bands equate higher levels i.e. 46dBA and 45dBA.  If the discrepancy is due to A-weighting corrections, this or any other reason requires explanation.     
· The NIA dated 18/7/18 includes details of a background noise survey undertaken more than 3.5 years ago.  Since this point in time Camden’s Local Plan (2017) was introduced requiring fixed plant to operate at lower noise levels.  Furthermore, the prevailing noise climate is likely to have changed.  
· A barrier calculation is required for the reason previously explained. 
· A revised noise assessment representative of the existing noise climate and addressing the points mentioned is required. 
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